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"Sandhu, Bhapinder" <Bhapinder.Sandhu@vancouver.ca>
"Gould, Brian" <Brian.Gould@vancouver.ca>

"Sibley, Marc" <Marc.Sibley@vancouver.ca>

"Hatton, Rommel" <Rommel.Hatton@vancouver.ca>
"Woods, Belinda" <Belinda.Woods@vancouver.ca>
12/17/2019 2:13:17 PM

RE: WO#1151318 - 200 Alexander St. - Delineators Down

Thank you Brian for understanding our situation.

Glad to hear that you’ve made some progress with this site.

From: Gould, Brian

Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2019 2:06 PM

To: Sandhu, Bhapinder

Cc: Traffic Operations; Sibley, Marc; Hatton, Rommel; Woods, Belinda
Subject: RE: WO#1151318 - 200 Alexander St. - Delineators Down

Hi Bhapinder,
Recognizing the unusual circumstances here, please use CER-00220-HH-01.

We coincidentally had a productive meeting with VFRS this morning; previously we understood that
they were having issues driving over the IRS bollards, but no ideas for what they would prefer as
lockable bollards is asking a lot for multiple responses per day. Our current working plan is to use
concrete, mountable and painted yellow as necessary, and not to have any bollards or signs in the
way of VFRS access. It |l take us some time to agree on details and implement, but we have a path
forward finally.

From: Sandhu, Bhapinder

Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2019 7:54 AM

To: Gould, Brian

Cc: Traffic Operations; Sibley, Marc; Hatton, Rommel; Woods, Belinda
Subject: FW: WO#1151318 - 200 Alexander St. - Delineators Down

Good morning Brian,

200 Alexander is an ongoing issue for Traffic Operation s crews with respect to the maintenance of
the IRS delineators installed for a capital project.

Would it be possible to re-activate CEM975004? | would appreciate capturing charges associated
with the on-gong maintenance of capital work completed at this location.

Please contact me if you have any questions,

Thank you,
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Bhapinder Sandhu Superintendent |
Traffic Operations (TEOD) 8-4305
Office: 604.829.4305

Mobile: 604.603.2783
bhapinder.sandhu@vancouver.ca

From: Traffic Operations

Sent: Thursday, December 12, 2019 3:02 PM

To: Sandhu, Bhapinder

Subject: RE: WO#1151318 - 200 Alexander St. - Delineators Down

CEM975004 that was previously used for this location is now closed.

Thanks,
Oliver Thomas
Traffic, Electrical Operations & Design Branch

City of Vancouver | 604.871.6258

From: Sandhu, Bhapinder

Sent: Thursday, December 12, 2019 2:48 PM

To: Hatton, Rommel; Traffic Operations; Sibley, Marc

Cc: Traffic - Temporary Permit Decals

Subject: RE: WO#1151318 - 200 Alexander St. - Delineators Down

Let’s review after we know the extent of the damage.

Is the capital number still active or has it been closed?

From: Hatton, Rommel

Sent: Thursday, December 12, 2019 9:54 AM

To: Traffic Operations; Sibley, Marc; Sandhu, Bhapinder

Cc: Traffic - Temporary Permit Decals

Subject: RE: WO#1151318 - 200 Alexander St. - Delineators Down

Placed in the Friday, December 13th 2019 folder for crew assignment.
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Street in the middle of Maple Tree Square. Space for cycling
within the square is lightly delineated by benches and a custom
zebra/elephants’ feet crossing pattern. This pattern emphasizes
the crosswalk side, at the BIA’s request, and forms the bike
crossing out of negative space. The single row of large elephants’
feet reinforce the yield condition, are visually strong, and match
the crosswalk bar widths. The Street & Traffic Bylaw amendment
covers crosswalks “marked by elephants’ feet markings on one or
both sides as not requiring signing to permit cycling, thus this
layout is covered. Although not our typical pattern, large feet
and this layout have been seriously considered for multiple
projects including the Arbutus Greenway.

To support heritage character and meet a BIA request to provide
minimum delineation to start, green paint will not be used, nor
will cycling space initially be stenciled or otherwise painted
through the square. To reach the crossing of Water, NB bike
traffic will be directed to cross Carrall Street.

In recognition of only one through lane on Water and a desire to
narrow crossings as much as possible, one of the two travel lanes
on Powell will be a dedicated left turn lane to Carrall with the
other to serve primarily Water and to a lesser extent local access
to Alexander. Advanced warning of this change will be provided
before the square, while a solid line will be painted to divide
these lanes within the square.

Design vehicles are as follows:
e WBL (to Carrall south) is a B-14M
e WBT (to Water) is a B-14M with at least 1.5m for cycling
e WBR (to Alexander, Carrall north) is an SU-9

Control vehicle for all movements is a ladder truck

Recognizing the WBR onto Alexander is an unusual movement
with drivers turning onto a one-way except bikes, a short contra-
flow bike lane is painted before the square that also helps direct
people cycling away from oncoming traffic turning from Powell.
Right-of-way for people cycling joining the Alexander roadway
will be confirmed by a standard “turning vehicles yield to
pedestrians and bicycles” sign just after the Powell crosswalk. As
people cycling are travelling across the Alexander crosswalk,
elephants’ feet are not required and would be potentially
confusing legally and practically in terms of where bicycles are
intended to travel.

Preferred bollard spacing, with or without chains, is 2m to match
existing and per Eileen Curran for SED on accessibility. A dotted
paint line is offset 0.45m from centre (or about 0.3m from edge)
to add visibility and provide some additional shy distance. All
new bollards are redesigned by EQS to be completely removable,
including bolts, by the use of sleeves. Sign posts within the space
will be mounted on similarly removable flanges. Likewise,
benches will be removable for events. Where possible, bike
racks, sign posts benches, and other objects will be used rather
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than bollards, particularly to lightly separate walking and
cycling.

Signs for Maple Tree will be minimized and/or located before the
square where possible. TDM have recommended right-of-way be
assigned to walking and cycling at the adjacent crossings, and
have specified a custom sign based the US “State Law Yield to
Peds” and similar precedents, used without RA-4 signs. TDE have
adopted these recommendations, and request a TDM field review
of sign visibility and monitoring of the situation immediately
following installation to confirm the TDM recommendations,
including compliance and size.

The decision to assign right-of-way to both people walking and
cycling is based on an analysis of context and anticipated user
behaviour. In both cases, assigning to people cycling the same
right-of-way as people walking avoids a situation where these
parallel crossings have people cycling yielding to crossing drivers,
who are in turn yielding to people walking. This situation is
particularly problematic for inexperienced users and our target
“all ages and abilities” cycling demographics. Where two local or
two arterial streets cross, the Design Guidelines for AAA Cycling
Routes state that right-of-way should favour the AAA cycling
facility if possible, and also indicates that even a two lane major
street crossing may not require a traffic signal if crossing
enhancements are made.

All users are entering a unique space in Vancouver, featuring
unconventional pavement and geometry, which contributes to
heightened awareness. Likewise, Maple Tree Square/Water
Street crosswalks are busy, and drivers expect to need to slow
and potentially yield. With the conversion of 000 block Alexander
to one-way eastbound motor vehicles, there are no longer any
crossing conflicts between motor vehicles in the space. As a
result, the crosswalks/bike crossings can be considered as if they
were midblock crossings.

In the case of the Carrall crossing, the turning motor vehicle
volume is approximately 250/peak hour. This is similar to
expected walking/cycling volumes, and in busy summer times it
is likely there will be more people crossing on foot and bicycle.
Requiring drivers to yield while turning is also an expected
behaviour. The northbound protected bike lane becomes less
delineated and turns to cobbles before the crossing, encouraging
awareness and slower cycling speeds.

In the case of the Water crossing, motor vehicle volumes are
likely to be higher but it is hard to predict how many people will
choose to use the new crossing. Since this location is in the
centre of the square, there are clear sightlines in all directions.
The single, short crossing without turning motor vehicles
simplifies the potential conflict. Again, being on cobbles with low
delineation is expected to help slow cycling speeds. When busy,
motor vehicle traffic to Water Street is very commonly slow, or
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stop-and-go, where drivers would be expected to yield
frequently regardless. Visibility of the signs, particularly the one
on the left given the curve, should be good for approaching
drivers.

Bicycle wayfinding through the space is intentionally limited
given the low delineation. The crossings serve as stepping stones,
while wayfinding signs and paint/bollards confirm at either end
that people cycling are to “wiggle” over and join the plaza.
“Bicycles yield to pedestrians” signs will be installed at those
entry points.

For the new crosswalk, grates at the bottom of the Gassy Jack
mound pose an accessibility concern. An effort was made to
identify a cost-effective alternative grate, but was not
successful. Similarly, closing off some of the grates was not
supported. Unless/until another solution can be reached, the
benches have been adjusted to facilitate using the “bike” side as
little as possible to maneuver around the grates for those with
mobility needs.

The existing tour bus zone on Powell may be shifted east to
accommodate a loading zone at business request and to help
reduce illegal stopping within the square. It should also help tour
bus drivers make the left turn onto Carrall given desires to
reduce volumes on Water in the short and longer term. However,
the situation is complicated by the tour bus being co-located
with a taxi zone and adjacent an accessible parking space. The
accessible parking space is in a particularly unusual location, but
relocation is likely to cause public concern. Relocating the
tour/taxi zone past the accessible parking space is achievable,
but displaces three of the four metered parking spaces on that
block. It would appear that the bus stop ID can be relocated and
bus zone reduced, but these details would need to be confirmed
through a separate drawing given timelines.

Bollards between the Alexander crosswalk and diagonal parking
have been designed around a potential public bike share station.
Locations for Mobi have been difficult to find agreement
between parties such as the Gastown BIA and FASE, and the
previous planned location on the north leg of Carrall was out of
the way while requiring a patio relocation the BIA no longer
supports. This new location should support 20 docks in double-
loaded configuration without the bicycles encroaching on through
sidewalk width or past bollards, and without the station
conflicting with utilities. PBS will run a separate process for this
station subsequent to approvals; this may be a good location for
movable furniture if unsuccessful.

In addition to existing patios, movable furniture, and the planned
benches, additional public space activations and furniture within
the space will be encouraged. Recognizing the ongoing Gastown
planning process, all interventions here are interim to a final
design.
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Design of two-way conversion of
Columbia

The interim conversion of one block of Columbia will add paint
lines and stencils that will need to be eradicated to convert the
remainder, which is unfortunate. This is due to the need to
relocate the centre lane line when it becomes the DDL, as well
as TDM’s request for painted turn arrows to help ensure drivers
do not encounter oncoming traffic across Powell.

The sign plan is relatively straightforward, including the
necessary changes to regulations and rotating parking signs; at
the north end, the northbound “must right” except bicycles is in
anticipation of changes to the 000 block of Alexander (one-way
eastbound except bikes), but this sign plan can be implemented
in advance of construction on Alexander overall so that the
needed southbound motor vehicle traffic can be accommodated
(westbound motor vehicle traffic on the 100 block of Alexander
having nowhere else to go).

Design of full closure east of Main

In order to accommodate regular use by VFRS, the closure makes
use of flexible and impact resisting barriers. The preferred
option is a flexible fence product TDE will be testing with VFRS
shortly, but alternatively IRS bollards could be used. Ultimately
this proposed design will be considered interim, with traffic
pattern changes and durability monitored to help inform a
permanent design. This could include automated bollards, in this
location or closer to Main St.

Please note that the unusual design of this closure is mostly due
to semi-truck access requirements of two businesses, one on
each side of the closure. Parking east of the closure is restricted
both to allow these movements, as well as to accommodate 3-
point turns and minimize the number of drivers searching for
parking on this block.

Bulges and changes to sidewalks,
particularly around Main to Gore

There was a desire from residents, particularly in the NW corner
of Gore and Alexander, for measures to tighten up intersections
to discourage fast, soft turns (for example, to Railway). As the
design for this section is considered interim, bulges at Gore and
Main are very possible but should not be implemented until the
success of this interim treatment is determined as alternate
designs are likely to require their removal.

Protected bike lane radius, bend

The transition of the bike path from Hawks back onto the
Alexander roadway uses minimum 5m radii

Protected bike lane radius, int

The bike lane bend from Powell onto Hawks has an inside radius
of 4m, which meets typical radii for bikes at intersections (3m or
less) but not a bend within a continuous bike path (5m or more)

Bike path width, bidirectional

2.5m, the minimum from TAC more commonly used for off-street
paths, is essentially all that can be provided, but edge conditions
are favourable

Bike separation

While retaining loading zone, two-way motor vehicle traffic, and
sidewalk, only 0.6m remain for separations

Curb bulge, width

Curb bulges 2.5m deep are used to transition to and from a
narrower roadway just north of Powell. Negative impacts on
cycling are not expected.
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2. Formalizing Hawks St as the bikeway opens
opportunities for the implementation of public
spaces and better pedestrian designs along Heatley
St @ Alexander St, after the removal of the
overpass. This will also trigger changes to the
surrounding infrastructure. Once this occurs, we
assume the design of Alexander / Hawks will have
to be reviewed.

3. Pedestrian infrastructure is not been improved as
part of this design. There is a current pinched
point location in the sidewalk, which is also
substandard (narrow). As per the changes in Q1
and Q2, pedestrian improvements along this
corridor are/will be required.

4. Redevelopment of the adjacent properties are
likely to occur, though unknown in terms of
timelines. The redevelopment of the Sunrise site
and the Port’s parking lot will also have an impact
on the design.

removing some parking.

As above, different constraints could lead to
a design that is better not only for cycling on
Hawks, but for cycling on Alexander, for
walking, etc. It is likely the design would be
mostly replaced by a new one. As the
current design provides part of the cycling
space from the roadway and part from the
sidewalk, an interim solution is not possible
other than to minimize costs such as signal
modifications and material costs.

Unfortunately, responding to site constraints
did not provide an opportunity to improve
walking conditions on the sidewalk, although
there is more space overall in the corner by
adding the refuge spaces and the narrow
sidewalks pinched by signals are an existing
condition on both Powell and Hawks due to
the Powell Overpass project. As space is
limited, a sidewalk on the east side can only
be accomplished by removing parking and/or
reducing the amount of space for semi-truck
maneuvers in the corner of the roadway,
both of which would be contentious.

| understand that seeking dedication through
any future redevelopment (which is when
the sidewalk would become valuable) is an
acceptable option for Hawks, and that
redevelopment building a sidewalk on
Alexander by removing parking may be the
best way to move forward. Redevelopment
of the Sunrise site would have the most
impact on what is possible here.

Additional comment from TPL at
Hawks

Brian Gould

2018-02-08

Request received from Kati on 2018-02-08 to comment on
the length of the bulge north of the driveway on the east
side of Hawks.

The default NSAT at a driveway is 1.5m from
the crossing, typically taken as the flare.
This design provides an additional 6m from
where that flare would have landed had
there been no bulge, thus the design already
provides one car length more corner
clearance than the bylaw which is similar to
Hornby, for example; restricting more
parking would have diminishing returns in an
area already very sensitive to parking
impacts.

As an alternative, the bulge both ensures
parking keeps clear as well as pushing the
driveway crossing out toward the road. As a
result, this relatively steep driveway will
help ensure drivers slow before the bike
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crossing and have time to look for SB bikes.

Furthermore, we expect faster moving
bicycle traffic will mostly keep to the road
and enter the bike path at the driveway,
thus avoiding the conflicts in a different
way.

As the Hydro pole just north is no longer
expected to be relocated (just the anchor),
extending the bulge would furthermore not
provide any additional usable width for
walking and cycling.

e Although the curb is offset, the DDL has
been realigned to straight across the
intersection. The bulge in the SE corner of

Comments from Toby 2018-01-24: the intersection could be expanded to 3.2m
e The offset in the east curb experienced by NB deep to match the curb alignment; at 2.5m
traffic is significant at 0.7m, may require object it is already relatively deep and the object

marker marker in the NE corner would be typical
regardless. Recommend the existing design.

Subsequent comments from Toby .

Lewis at Hawks Brian Gould 2018-01-24 e These two issues are related, in that the
offset above is created by maximizing the
amount of space. Through the 3D design,
there may be an opportunity to use shorter

e There is limited space for people walking in the NE ramps given the expanded sidewalk space
corner of Hawks and Powell works against the crown of the roadway.
Signal design should consider retaining the
existing push buttons as well as any new
buttons/poles.
Comments from Winston 2018-03-01: * |was under the impression the signal was
already being operated semi-actuated and
e Although push buttons are not currently needed
Comment from Winston Chou and . because the signal is set to min recall, we expect thus nengd the push buttons. | understand
. Brian Gould 2018-03-01 - SI9 . - P the decision, but may have preferred
TDM at 100% approval of Main to put the signal on a more typical semi-actuated ’

retaining the recall to avoid cost and
prioritize walking and cycling along the new
bikeway.

operation that rests on green for Main St (given
reduced motor vehicle volumes on Alexander.

If referring to a document on the table below, include any one of the following information for easy file retrieval: document name, number, and location.
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LESSONS LEARNED REPORT
Project Name: Alexander Street - Gastown, Main Street, and Hawks Avenue
Project Number: 13-4200-10/0000155

Project Manager: Fiona Keating (Joel Clary developed this report)

Change History:

. Ny Created/
Revision Date Description Revised by
0 2018-10-16 | Original version Joel Clary
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From: Kumar, Arun

To: Keating, Fiona

Subject: RE: Alexander WBS

Date: Wednesday, April 11, 2018 9:31:50 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Hi Fiona,

Estimate for Alexander Street Project:-

Columbia and Powell - $45,000
Hawks and Powell - $55,000
Main and Alexander - $50,000

Estimate consists of 20% Contingency and only include electrical work and sidewalk restoration(only

portion which is impacted due to electrical work)

Thanks,
Arun Kumar
Electrical Design

Streets & Electrical Design Branch, City of Vancouver

P: 604.871.6823 | E: arun.kumar@vancouver.ca

From: Keating, Fiona

Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2018 8:26 AM
To: Kumar, Arun

Subject: RE: Alexander WBS

Yes please!

From: Kumar, Arun

Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2018 8:25 AM
To: Keating, Fiona

Subject: RE: Alexander WBS

Not yet, | can prepare it if you require.

Arun Kumar
Electrical Design

Streets & Electrical Design Branch, City of Vancouver

P: 604.871.6823 | E: arun.kumar@vancouver.ca

From: Keating, Fiona

Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2018 8:24 AM
To: Kumar, Arun

Subject: RE: Alexander WBS

Do you actually have an estimate for the electrical at Main/Alexander and Hawks/Powell too?
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From: Kumar, Arun

Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2018 8:09 AM
To: Keating, Fiona

Subject: RE: Alexander WBS

Hi Fiona,

What's the budget we have for Powell and Columbia intersection. | am just curious because we have
to replace 2 decorative type poles and fixtures along with new bases and its estimate is around

26,000.

Arun Kumar
Electrical Design

Streets & Electrical Design Branch, City of Vancouver
P: 604.871.6823 | E: arun.kumar@vancouver.ca

From: Keating, Fiona

Sent: Tuesday, April 10, 2018 3:03 PM
To: Kumar, Arun

Subject: RE: Alexander WBS

Drawing Package deadline is April 27

From: Kumar, Arun

Sent: Tuesday, April 10, 2018 2:54 PM
To: Keating, Fiona

Subject: RE: Alexander WBS

Thanks Fiona.

Arun Kumar
Electrical Design

Streets & Electrical Design Branch, City of Vancouver

P: 604.871.6823 | E: arun.kumar@vancouver.ca

From: Keating, Fiona

Sent: Tuesday, April 10, 2018 2:53 PM
To: Kumar, Arun

Cc: Chan, Phillip

Subject: Alexander WBS

Hi Arun,

Here is the WBS | received for Alexander Bikeway.
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CER-00216
—- Blexander St Bikeway | CER-00216-WN

—* CER-00216-NN-01

—* CER-00216-NN-02

—* CER-00216-NN-03

—= CER-00216-NN-04
CER-00216-NN-04-RAR
CER-00216-NN-04-BB
CER-00216-NN-04-CC
CER-00216-N-04-0D
Water Gps  |CER-00216-NN-04-EE
* 5.0 External Contractor | CER-00216-NN-05

—* 6.0 Miscellaneous Hard | CER-00216-WN-06

Thanks,

Fiona Keating P.Eng.

Project Manager

City of Vancouver | Streets & Electrical Design
Tel: 604-326-4814| Fax: 604-873-7212

Email: fiona.keating@vancouver.ca
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ENGINEERING SERVICES
Jerry Dobrovolny, P.Eng.General Manager

April 13, 2018
Dear Resident, Property or Business Owner,
RE:  INTERSECTION MODIFICATION - ALEXANDER ST AND MAIN ST

The City of Vancouver will be altering the intersection of Alexander Street and Main Street.
Work is scheduled to begin at the end of April and will carry on through June.

As part of the project, there will be some changes made to the intersection, including:
e Extended curb bulge at southwest corner of Alexander Street and Main Street
e New traffic signal push buttons
o Installation of traffic barriers (concrete medians, and bollards) east of Main Street on
Alexander Street

We will make every effort to minimize noise. Some of the sounds you can expect to hear
throughout the day will be from machinery such as dump trucks, compaction equipment and
vibratory rollers. An additional notification letter will be provided should construction work
be required outside of times permitted by the City’s Noise Control By-law.

During this time some lane closures and traffic diversions will be in effect. Closures will be
marked through construction signage and/or traffic flaggers.

If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to speak to the supervisor on
site or contact myself at 604-326-4814. | would like to thank you in advance for your patience
and apologize for any inconvenience this project may cause.

Yours truly,

Fiona Keating

Streets Project Coordination
604-326-4814
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From: Chan, Phillip

To: Keating, Fiona

Subject: RE: Main and Alexander - Estimate
Date: Wednesday, April 11, 2018 2:03:31 PM
Hi Fiona,

Here's the high level estimate for Alexander and Main is $75,000:

And includes the following assumptions:
e 50% contingency (for streets scope)
e Assume sidewalk where curb bulges out
e  Provision for civil/electrical for 2 push button operators (2x$15,000)
e Provision for traffic ops (stencils and bollards - $15,000)

Cheers,

Phil Chan
Engineering Project Coordinator
Streets and Electrical Design, City of Vancouver

From: Keating, Fiona

Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2018 7:34 AM
To: Chan, Phillip

Subject: Main and Alexander - Estimate

Hi Phil,

Electrical design is starting on this stuff, but realized we don’t have our own estimate for this
location yet.
Sorry to dump another one on you. Can you please get me something today if possible?

Thank you,

Fiona Keating r.Eng.

Project Manager

City of Vancouver | Streets & Electrical Design
Tel: 604-326-4814| Fax: 604-873-7212

Email: fiona.keating@vancouver.ca
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Date: May 09, 2018
Time: 1:00pm-2:00pm

Project: Alexander St, Gastown, Main St, and Hawks Av

Location: Alexander St, Gastown, Main St, and Hawks Av

MINUTES
Subject: Project Management Meeting | Meeting No. |
George Ledo Jack Durnford John Pasin Vince Paccani
Attendees: Fiona Keating Doug Moore Ron Borger Josh Veillard
Apologies:
Distribution:
Chair: | Fiona Keating | Recorded by: Josh
Item Comments Action by | Date
1.0 Design
1.1 Sign and paint plan need to be issued (completed) Transporta
tion
1.2 Civil to contact electrical about clarifying crossings (drawing unclear) George
Ledo

1.3 Cut Sheets still required for NE corner of Powell and Hawks (completed) Survey
3.0 Construction
3.1 Schedule
3.1.2 Sewers to start CB relocation this week

Hawks and Powell - Estimated time 3 weeks

Main and Alexander - Estimated time 1 week
3.2 TMP
3.2.1 Meeting with Sherwood this Friday to discuss street closures
3.2.2 Powell St to close one lane and either direct traffic into one lane or close

parking lane and have 2 travel lanes
3.2.3 Alexander East of Main St to be closed.
4.0 Stakeholders
4.1 BIA
4.2 Construction letters have been sent out
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Date: May 11, 2018
Time: 2:30 pm-3pm
Location: Room 306 Crossroads

Project: Alexander St, Gastown, Main St, and Hawks Av

MINUTES
Subject: Project Management Meeting | Meeting No. |
Fiona Keating Josh Veillard Greg Nowak
Attendees:
Sherwood Plant
Apologies:
Distribution:
Chair: | Fiona Keating | Recorded by: Josh
Item Comments Action by | Date
1.0 TMP
1.1 Columbia/Powell
1.1.1 Maintain 1 lane minimum SB Columbia
1.1.2 Maintain 2 lane NB Columbia (1 turn, 1 through)
1.1.3 Maintain 2 lanes EB/WB Powell (after 9:30AM)
1.1.4 | Accepted
1.2 Hawks/Powell
1.2.1 Powell to be closed on Northernmost lane
1.2.2 Southern parking lane to have prohibited parking and be a travel lane during
construction
1.2.3 Hawks to have no parking along construction site
1.2.4 | Accepted
1.3 Main/Alexander
1.3.1 Alexander, east of Main to be closed with limited traffic permitted
1.3.2 Alexander, west of Main no traffic issues
1.3.3 Accepted
1.4 Maple Tree Square
1.4.1 Interim conditions accepted as per attached
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5/30/2018

| work [TTTE

WORKING TO MAKE A DIFFERENCE

Notice of Project

WorkSafeBC Online - Notice of Project

NOP Confirmation number: E780492

—Owner information — Prime contractor or employer information
Account #: Account #:
Name: Fiona Name: City of Vancouver
Country: Canada Country: Canada
Address: 507 W Broadway Address: 701 National Ave
City: Vancouver City: Vancouver
Province: British Columbia Province: British Columbia
Postal code: Postal code:

—Person in charge of project —Person completing this form
Name: Jack Durnford Name: Fiona Keating
Job title: Streets - Superintendent II Email:
Email: Phone number: (604) 326-4814 Ext:
Phone number: (604) 871-6771 Ext:

—Has a prime contractor agreed in writing with the owner to be the prime contractor?

Additional documents:
Delivery method:
Sent date:

—Required documents and additional information to be submitted

NOP Confirmation number:

E780492

https://online.worksafebc.com/anonymous/NOP/confirmation.aspx
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5/30/2018

WorkSafeBC Online - Notice of Project

Construction Project (OH&S Regulation 20.2) - At least 24 hours notice required.

— General construction

Commercial:

Institutional:

Residential
Single family:
Multi-family wood:
Multi-family concrete:

Industrial:

Recreational:

Number of floors:

Floor area:

Recreational explanation:

Industrial explanation:

— Site preparation
Pile driving:
Remediation:

Ground
preparation:

 r—Road construction

Length (kilometers):

New: Yes
Resurfacing:

Alignment:

— Service construction

New:
Repair:
Sewer line:
Water line:
Gas line:
Power line:

— Heavy construction
Bridge:
Bridge length (meters):
Bridge height (meters):
Pier, wharf, or dry-dock:
Dam, dyke, or reservoir:

—Other type of general construction (explain)
Explanation:

Addition of curb bulges, extension of protected bike lane, and a paved bike path. New curb ramps. Relocated traffic signals,
change in traffic flow and direction, new signs and paint.

— Project Information

Ground support drawings available:

Bridge:

Project cost greater than $100,000: Yes

Designed by a professional engineer: Yes

Work in an excavation over 1.2 m (4 ft) deep:

Work in a trench over 30 m (100 ft) long:

A building more than 2 storeys or 6 m (20 ft) high:

Earth or water retaining structure more than 3 m (10 ft) high:

Silo, chimney or other similar structure more than 6 m (20 ft) high:

Work in cofferdam or in a compressed air environment other than an underground working:
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5/30/2018 WorkSafeBC Online - Notice of Project

— Estimated project cost
Cost:

— Person responsible for co-ordinating health and safety activities
Name: Jack Durnford

— Electrical declaration

With respect to electrical safety for portable electrical equipment at this location, it is declared
The project will use GFCI protection of installed receptacles in accordance with the requirements of the BC Electrical Code: Yes

Where GFCI protection indicated above is not intended to be provided, the electrical contractor(s) will make application(s) to the applicable
electrical authority for variance(s) to the BC Electrical Code requirements for the referenced GFCI protection based on a declaration by the
prime contractor that an assured grounding program is implemented at the work site. Where the variance(s) is granted, it is the
responsibility of the prime contractor to ensure that the assured grounding program at the site is used in accordance with WorkSafeBC
published guidelines and practices set out in OHS Guideline 19.15(1) Ground fault circuit interrupters and other acceptable means:

Not applicable. No portable electrical equipment, including temporary lighting, will be used on this site:

NOP Confirmation number: E780492

— Project site locations

Site Start date Project Duration  Unit Project site location

Location city

1 2018/06/04 Vancouver 4 Months Hawks Avenue - from Alexander to Powell including the intersection and south of
Powell.

2 2018/06/04 Vancouver 4 Months Alexander Street - Columbia to Gore

3 2018/07/02 Vancouver 4 Months Maple Tree Square - intersection of Carrall, Water, Alexander, Powell and the
approaches to this intersection

4 2018/07/02 Vancouver 4 Months Alexander Street - Maple Tree Square to Columbia

Please note that if the information on the NOP significantly changes, the new information must be submitted to WorkSafeBC as soon as
possible and posted at the project site.

To send required documents, additional information or changes to the NOP information to WorkSafeBC, along with your NOP confirmation
number E780492 and a brief project site description:

Email: prevnhop@WorkSafeBC.com
(if your attachments are over 10 MB, send multiple emails or email us for further instructions)
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5/30/2018 WorkSafeBC Online - Notice of Project
Fax: 604.276.3247

Mailing address: WorkSafeBC, Prevention Division
PO Box 5350 Stn Terminal, Vancouver BC V6B 5L5
Questions?
If you have any questions or issues with the NOP form, please contact Prevention Support Services at:
Telephone: 604.276.3100 in the Lower Mainland, or 1.888.621.7233 Toll Free in BC

Email: prevnop@WorkSafeBC.com
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Engineering Services / Streets & Electrical Design /
Project Coordination

PROJECT CHARTER

(November 20 2017)

Alexander Street: Gastown (Maple Tree Square), Main

Street, and Hawks Avenue
Project Number: 13-4200-10/0000155

Change History:

Revision | Date Description Author Approver
0 02 Feb 18 Pre-Stage Gate Review FK MLB
1 Sponsor Approval FK
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Executive Summary

Alexander Street: Gastown, Main Street, and Hawks

Project Title Avenue

Approved Project Classification Size Level 2

e  Gastown, (Maple Tree Square): Bollard
realignment, and Alexander directional change
e  Main Street: Bollard installation
Scope Summary e Hawks Avenue: Bike Lane Extension
e Powell and Columbia Intersection: 1 way street
conversion to 2 way street and Intersection
Modification

Estimated Duration/Phasing Q2/Q3 2018

Transportation =
Gastown: $70,000
Total Charter Budget (incl. contingency) Main Street: $125,000
Hawks Avenue: PH1 $245,000, PH2 $120,000
Powell and Columbia: $45,000

Streets - PM

Transportation - 2D Design

Streets - 3D Design

Street Ops - Construction/Installation

Participating Branches

e  Gastown (Maple Tree Square): rolling traffic
closures depending on how much realignment
needs to occur and the type of bollard and
install method required.

e Main Street: No post barriers will be installed
along with IRS bollards as the interim before
medians will be constructed. Permanent
change to the flow of traffic at this location so

Specific Public Impacts signage will be required.

e Hawks Avenue: Changes to parking access
during construction. Businesses will need to be
notified of specific dates of impact.

e Powell and Columbia: Change of direction of 2
lanes on Columbia between Alexander and
Powell. South of intersection NB west lane
turning into a left turn only lane. New signage
and paint required.

Specific Project Dependencies Perform work in 2018 (May - August 2018)

1. Overview

1.1 Background

Alexander Street was identified by Transportation as requiring some modifications in order to
promote safer cycling pathways through East Vancouver.

The intersection of Water Street, Carrall Street, Alexander Street and Powell Street (also known as
Maple Tree Square) currently has bollards set up to passively direct traffic through the pedestrian
heavy area. It was identified that cyclists were shortcutting in unsafe manners to bypass passenger
vehicles trying to navigate through this area. A shift of the bollards is being implemented in order to
better direct vehicular traffic as well as make crossings and flow obvious to cyclists as well.

The east side of the Main and Alexander Street intersection was identified as requiring a closure to

vehicular traffic in order to maintain a more pedestrian and cyclist friendly pathway. However, a film
studio on the NE corner of Main and Alexander requires access for their freight trucks, and the VFD
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also requires regular access to respond to calls. In order to provide this access while achieving a
closure for the general public, a concrete median with IRS bollards is to be implemented so that
emergency vehicles can still drive through if required. The barrier will be installed after the film
studio so they can maintain their access. Transportation was initially researching the use of
Automated Bollards. The installation would allow approved users to use passive RFID to have the
bollards recess into the ground in order to open the street as required. There wasn’t enough time to
vet this option for this particular project.

The intersection of Powell Street and Hawks Avenue currently sees the end of a protected westbound
bike lane. This project intends to extend that bike lane directly to the intersection and then north
onto Hawks Avenue. This will direct cyclist traffic onto Alexander Street.

The intersection of Powell and Columbia will be modified to allow people traveling east bound on
Alexander to go south along Columbia and go west along Powell. This will require Columbia in
between Alexander and Powell to be converted from a 1 way north bound to a 2 way street.

1.2 Project Description

This project has three distinct work packages:

e Work Package 1: Bollard reconfiguration at Gastown (Maple Tree Square)

e  Work Package 2: Bollard installation at Main Street

e Work Package 3: Bike Lane Extension at Hawks

e Work Package 4: Powell and Columbia Traffic Signal and 1-way Street to 2-way Street
Conversion

Work Package 1: Bollard reconfiguration at Gastown (Maple Tree Square)

The current arrangement of the bollards in the intersection of Carrall Street, Water Street, Alexander
Street and Powell Street leaves a lot of room for cyclists and vehicles to be confused as to where
they should be traveling. This project is meant to create very distinct pathways for vehicles and
cyclists that will cause less points of conflict.

The type of bollard connections will also be researched, as the current ones leave obstructions proud
of the ground, which are dangerous for cycling events through the area.

New bollard connections have been fabricated in house that are flush with the ground so if removed
won’t be a safety hazard to cyclists.

Work Package 2: Bollard Installation at Main Street

Alexander Street at Main Street has been identified as a spot where vehicle access should be
restricted. To achieve this, a barrier needs to be installed at the east side of the intersection at
Alexander Street. The barrier system still needs to allow Fire Truck access, as the Vancouver Fire
Department uses this route to respond to calls quite frequently.

A film company at the North East corner of Alexander and Main also has truck deliveries to their
facility.

Transportation is currently researching an Automated Bollard system, which would allow an
authorized user to employ passive RFID technology to retract the bollards into an underground
foundation box. The technology requires dedicated power, and a well thought administrative process
for handing out access. In the interim of sorting out the details of this endeavor, a hard plastic
bollard barrier (IRS bollards) will be installed alongside concrete medians. This system will allow
emergency vehicles to drive through/over the barrier if absolutely required.

Before the installation of the concrete medians, no post barriers will be installed strategically to still
allow VFD access.
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Upgrades to the intersection at Main and Alexander will include installing new LED lights to current
light poles and installing cyclist push buttons to poles for east bound and west bound cyclists.

Work Package 3: Bike Lane Extension at Hawks

The West Bound protected bike lane along Powell currently ends just short of the intersection of
Powell Street and Hawks Avenue. In order to fill a gap in the bike network, the bike lane will be
extended to the intersection and north onto Hawks Avenue which will turn into Alexander Street. In
order to achieve this, the barrier will be extended as per the geometric design.

Hydro poles will also have to be relocated, and anchors adjusted in order to accommodate the bike
lane. This requires BC Hydro’s involvement. The hydro pole won’t be relocated until 2019.

Work Package 4: Powell and Columbia Traffic Signal and 1-way Street to 2-way Street Conversion

Alexander will be reversing direction from 1 way west bound to 1 way east bound from Maple Tree
Square to Columbia. Columbia in between Alexander Street and Powell Street will be converted from
a 1 way street north bound to a 2 way street. The 2 lanes being converted to south bound will be a
right turn only onto Powell. The opposing lane on Columbia south of the intersection will be a left
turn only lane. New signs, paint and traffic signals will be required.

1.3 Alignment with Policies and Programs

This project aligns with the Streets Capital (City Major Roads and Sidewalk Rehab) program and
Transportation 2040 by supporting active transportation and improving the bike network.

2. Scope
2.1 In Scope

Project Boundaries

Bollard Reconfiguration at Gastown (Maple Tree Square):
The intersection of Water Street, Carrall Street, Alexander Street and Powell Street
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Bollard installation at Main Street:
The east side of the intersection of Main Street and Alexander Street (EB/WB approach). Upgrades to
Intersection of Main and Alexander will also be implemented.

Bike Lane Extension at Hawks:

Powell Street just east of Hawks Avenue, the corner of the intersection of Powell Street and Hawks
Avenue, northbound on Hawks Avenue and into the furthest east portion of Alexander Street

Street Conversion and intersection modification at Powell and Columbia:

Intersection of Powell and Columbia, and Columbia in between Powell and Alexander.
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Overview

Please see the attached Project Charter in the appendices for an overview on the project.

Background

Alexander Street was identified by Transportation as requiring some modifications in order to promote
safer cycling pathways through East Vancouver.

The intersection of Water Street, Carrall Street, Alexander Street and Powell Street (also known as Maple
Tree Square) currently has bollards set up to passively direct traffic through the pedestrian heavy area. It
was identified that cyclists were shortcutting in unsafe manners to bypass passenger vehicles trying to
navigate through this area. A shift of the bollards is being implemented in order to better direct vehicular
traffic as well as make crossings and flow obvious to cyclists as well.

The east side of the Main and Alexander Street intersection was identified as requiring a closure to
vehicular traffic in order to maintain a more pedestrian and cyclist friendly pathway. However, a film
studio on the NE corner of Main and Alexander requires access for their freight trucks, and the VFD also
requires regular access to respond to calls. In order to provide this access while achieving a closure for
the general public, a concrete median with IRS bollards is to be implemented so that emergency vehicles
can still drive through if required. The barrier will be installed after the film studio so they can maintain
their access. Transportation was initially researching the use of Automated Bollards. The installation
would allow approved users to use passive RFID to have the bollards recess into the ground in order to
open the street as required. There wasn’t enough time to vet this option for this particular project.

The intersection of Powell Street and Hawks Avenue currently sees the end of a protected westbound bike
lane. This project intends to extend that bike lane directly to the intersection and then north onto Hawks
Avenue. This will direct cyclist traffic onto Alexander Street.

During design it was brought to light, that Columbia north of Powell is to be converted to two-way traffic
which would trigger the switch of one way traffic on Alexander from westbound to eastbound. Maple Tree
Square construction is dependent on this two way conversion.

Project Description

This project has three distinct work packages:

Work Package 1: Bollard reconfiguration at Gastown (Maple Tree Square)

Work Package 2: Bollard installation at Main Street

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
Street and Powell Street leaves a lot of room for cyclists and vehicles to be confused as to where they
should be traveling. This project is meant to create very distinct pathways for vehicles and cyclists that
will cause less points of conflict.
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Archaeological Management

PM reviewed Archaeological Areas of Concern map and there are no areas of concern within the project
boundaries.
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Public Impact

Traffic Management

All Traffic Management to be discussed with Sherwood Plant and Greg Nowak.

Property and Business Impacts

Businesses will be affected in terms of access and parking.
Gastown is a very heavily occupied area, and especially during the fair weather/sunny days, it is
detrimental to business when construction is underway.

Project Close-Out

Acceptance and Commissioning

Following concrete, pushbutton, paint, sign and bollard installation a walk through will be completed with
the PM, PC and Operations to identify any deficiencies, which will be completed prior to Total
Completion. The PM will fill out the Substantial and Total Completion forms.

Lessons Learned

PM to maintain a lessons learned project throughout the project.

Appendices

Project Charter

Project Estimates

Detailed Project Schedule

Project Risk Register

Project Stakeholder Register

Project Contact List

IFC List:
0 Traffic Signal IFC: Main and Alexander (DOC/2018/220745)
o Traffic Signal IFC: Hawks and Powell (DOC/2018/220746)
o Traffic Signal IFC: Powell and Columbia (DOC/2018/220744)
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"O'Donnell, Ryan" <Ryan.O'Donnell@vancouver.ca>
"Traffic Operations" <traffic.operations@vancouver.ca>

"Parking Operations - Maintenance

n S. 15(1)(')

"Streets Design" <Streets.Design@vancouver.ca>
"Gould, Brian" <Brian.Gould@vancouver.ca>

"Liaw, Alex" <Alex.Liaw@vancouver.ca>

“Larijani, Alipasha" <Alipasha.Larijani@vancouver.ca>
"Keating, Fiona" <Fiona.Keating@vancouver.ca>
"Brown, Patrick" <patrick.borown@vancouver.ca>
"Wong, Andy" <Andy.Wong@vancouver.ca>

"Lee, Joyce \(ENG\)" <joyce.w.lee@vancouver.ca>
"Mate, Tibor" <tibor.mate@vancouver.ca>

"Darwent, Christopher" <Christopher.Darwent@vancouver.ca>
"Epa, Duminda" <Duminda.Epa@vancouver.ca>

5/15/2018 11:49:40 AM

Approved: Form 1 100-700 Blk Alexander St Bikeway DOC/2018

1206472
Alexander_Form_1.tr5

Hello All,

Please accept this e-mail as notification of approval for Transportation project 2014-87 (Alexander

St Corridor). The form 1 has been approved by Transportation.
Regards,

Ryan O Donnell
Geometric Designer

Transportation Design
City of Vancouver | Engineering Services
507 West Broadway

Vancouver, B.C. V5Z 0B4
t: 604.326.4828

f: 604.871 6192

e:Ryan.O’Donnell@vancouver.ca
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From: O"Donnell, Ryan

To: Keating, Fiona

Cc: Gould, Brian; Kenny, Ross

Subject: 2014-87 Sleeve Location Revision 1
Date: Wednesday, June 06, 2018 3:08:02 PM
Attachments: 2014-87-C-S Sleeves R1.pdf

Hey Fiona,

As discussed, attached is a revised sleeve location plan that now corresponds with the latest
geometric revision. Please contact me should you have any questions.

Sign plan revision is in the works now.

Regards,

Ryan O’Donnell
Geometric Designer
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From: Liaw, Alex

To: Durnford, Jack

Cc: Borger, Ron; Kenny, Ross; Gould, Brian; Keating, Fiona; Mate, Tibor; O"Donnell, Ryan
Subject: Alexander & Main - Site Instruction 001 - Install Gravity Barriers Instead of Cast-in-Place
Date: Friday, June 22, 2018 8:53:26 AM

Attachments: ENG - TDE - 143224 - Alexander St & Main St - Site Instruction Form 001 - 2018-06-20.tr5
Hi Jack,

Please find attached site instruction 01 for the installation of gravity barriers instead of cast-in-place
medians for the closure on Alexander between Main and Gore.

Regards,
Alex
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From: Keating, Fiona

To: Borger, Ron

Cc: Durnford, Jack; Elford, Dan

Subject: Alexander - Cut Sheets for Hawks and Main

Date: Wednesday, May 30, 2018 8:44:00 AM

Attachments: ENG - SED - DC - Alexander Street - Gastown, Main Street, and Hawks Avenue - Main Street - Cut Sheet - Curb

Return - South West Corner - 2018-05-16.tr5

ENG - SED - DC - Alexander Street - Gastown, Main Street, and Hawks Avenue - Hawks - Cut Sheet - Curb
Return - North East Corner - 2018-05-16.tr5

ENG - SED - DC - Alexander Street - Gastown, Main Street, and Hawks Avenue - Hawks - Cut Sheet - Curb
Return - South East Corner - 2018-04-25.tr5

Hi Ron,

Asdiscussed - please find attached links to the cut sheets.

Please keep me informed about schedule as much as possible - the closure at Main/Gore requires signage to be
installed ahead of time.

Thank you,
Fiona
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